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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON: Good morning

          3  everyone.  My name is Michael McMahon, City

          4  Councilman from Staten Island and also the Chairman

          5  on the Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste

          6  Management.

          7                 Today our Committee will hear

          8  testimony concerning INT. NO. 393.  INT. NO. 393

          9  amends the Administrative Code of the City of New

         10  York to include asphalt millings as an additional

         11  component of clean fill.  Asphalt millings are now

         12  produced in large quantities by municipalities as a

         13  result of their repaving programs.

         14            Numerous machinery allows municipalities

         15  to tear up old roadways quickly, by shredding the

         16  old asphalt into small granules suitable for

         17  reproducing asphalt, or for use possibly as clean

         18  fill.  Asphalt millings are plentiful and

         19  inexpensive and will wind up in landfills if not

         20  re-used.  Some states, such as New Jersey have

         21  regulations monitoring the use of asphalt millings

         22  as clean fill in certain in applications.  The

         23  regulations are to prevent the use of asphalt

         24  millings as clean fill and any situation that might

         25  pose a threat to surface water from possible runoffs
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          2  from the asphalt millings.

          3                 Connecticut allows asphalt millings

          4  as clean fill as long as the fragments are virtually

          5  inert and pose neither a threat to ground or surface

          6  waters, nor a fire hazard.

          7                 Today we will explore if asphalt

          8  millings should be allowed to be used as clean fill

          9  in New York City.  We welcome as our first witness,

         10  I know Robert Orlin, Deputy Commissioner of Legal

         11  Affairs for the Department of Sanitation, and we

         12  also have Joseph Cannisi, Deputy Commissioner of New

         13  York City Department of Transportation.  Why don't

         14  we do this.  The first panel why don't we start and

         15  everybody introduce themselves for the record and

         16  we'll go from there.  I'll let you choose the order.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  Hi, good

         18  morning.  I'm Robert Orlin from the Department of

         19  Sanitation.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  I'm

         21  Joseph Cannisi, Deputy Commissioner for Roadway

         22  Repair DOT.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  If you would

         24  just introduce the gentleman who is seated with you

         25  as well for the record.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  To my

          3  left is the Department's Chief of Staff, Michael

          4  Bimonte.

          5                 MR. NATOLI:  My name is John Natoli,

          6  I'm the Parks Department Chief Engineer.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  I'm Ron

          8  Livian, Deputy Commissioner, Department of

          9  Buildings.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay.  I'll

         11  leave it to you gentlemen to give us the order that

         12  you'd like to testify in. Thank you all for coming.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  Hi, good

         14  morning Mr. Chairman.  I am Robert Orlin, Deputy

         15  Commissioner of the Bureau of Legal Affairs for the

         16  New York City Department of Sanitation.  I am here

         17  today with Michael Bimonte, the Department's Chief

         18  of Staff, to discuss INT. NO. 393, introduced by

         19  Chairman McMahon and under consideration by the

         20  Committee today.

         21                 INT. NO. 393 would amend section 16-

         22  130(a)(7) of the City's Administrative Code, by

         23  expanding the definition of fill material to include

         24  asphalt millings.  Currently section 130(a)(7) of

         25  the Code defines fill material as "only clean
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          2  material consisting of earth, ashes, dirt, concrete,

          3  rock, gravel, stone or sand, provided that such

          4  material shall not contain organic matter having the

          5  tendency to decompose".

          6                 Local Law No. 40 of 1990 gave the

          7  Department the authority to permit and regulate

          8   "fill material operations" and "fill material

          9  transfer stations" in the City of New York.  Section

         10  16- 130(a)(8) of the Code defines "fill material

         11  operations" as "the grading, leveling, surcharging,

         12  compacting or final disposition of fill material for

         13  the purpose of land alteration or improvement."

         14                 The Department's rules set forth

         15  application criteria and operational standards for

         16  those fill material operations regulated by the

         17  Department.  The Administrative Code exempts an

         18  owner or occupant residential property from the need

         19  to obtain a fill material permit when the amount of

         20  fill material being used during a six- month period

         21  is less than three hundred cubic yards.

         22                 Application requests for fill

         23  material operation permits must be made by the

         24  contractor performing the fill material work.  Each

         25  application must include, among other things, the
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          2  following:  Proof of ownership of the property and

          3  the written, notarized consent of the owner

          4  authorizing the conduct of the fill operation; an

          5  official survey map showing block and lot numbers,

          6  street boundaries, property lines and the

          7  approximate square footage or acreage of the

          8  property; an estimate of the cubic yardage of fill

          9  maternal needed; a description of the particular

         10  materials to be used in filling the property; a

         11  detailed description of the fill work to be

         12  performed, the square footage of the property to be

         13  filled and the existing and proposed grades of the

         14  area to be filled or excavated; approximate length

         15  of time to complete the fill material operation; the

         16  source of the fill material; and copies of any

         17  permit required by any other governmental authority.

         18                 An application for a fill material

         19  operation will not be processed until the Department

         20  receives all of the above stated documentation.

         21  Additionally, a contractor is prohibited from

         22  commencing the requested fill operation before the

         23  Departmental approval is given.  The permit issued

         24  by the Department contains, among other things, the

         25  location of the fill material site, instructions
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          2  that markers must be erected denoting the boundary

          3  lines of the fill material operation, the maximum

          4  amount of fill material that can be used, a copy of

          5  the rules and regulations governing a fill material

          6  operation, and the dates in which the permit

          7  commences and expires.  Fill material operation

          8  permits are required to be renewed every six months.

          9                 Since the passage of Local Law 40,

         10  the Department has interpreted the definition of

         11   "fill material" to include only those specific

         12  material listed as fill material in Section 16- 130

         13  of the Administrative Code.  As a result, the

         14  Department's current policy has been to prohibit the

         15  use of asphalt millings as an acceptable fill

         16  material in the City of New York.

         17                 This amendment would allow "asphalt

         18  millings" to be used an acceptable fill material in

         19  the City.  Asphalt millings are composed of

         20  approximately 95% rock, sand and gravel aggregate

         21  and approximately 5% asphalt, also known as asphalt

         22  cement.  Asphalt millings may be suitable for many

         23  fill material operation projects.

         24                 The New York State Department of

         25  Environmental Conservation ("DEC") considers asphalt
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          2  millings to be non- hazardous and allows its use as

          3  a safe and appropriate fill material.  In fact, the

          4  state DEC exempts the use of asphalt millings from

          5  its regulations.  The addition of "asphalt millings"

          6  to the definition of fill material in the City's

          7  Administrative Code would be fully consistent with

          8  the State's rules and regulations which allow

          9  asphalt millings to be used in fill material

         10  operations.

         11                 The passage of this legislation will

         12  not alter the Department's enforcement procedures.

         13  The Department's Permit and Inspection and Unit,

         14  which routinely inspects all transfer stations, also

         15  routinely inspects fill material operation sites to

         16  ensure that they are accepting or using only

         17  designated fill materials at the site.  Besides

         18  checking for routine violations, the Department's

         19  Permit and Inspection Unit also reviews any

         20  paperwork detailing the origin of the fill material,

         21  and visually inspects the material on site to ensure

         22  that only designated fill materials are being used.

         23  The Department issues violations to fill material

         24  operations for the presence of any material other

         25  than lawful fill material, for the failure to obtain
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          2  fill material operations permit from the appropriate

          3  agency, or for any other operational violations such

          4  as lack of dust control measures and improper hours

          5  of operation.  These violations carry a minimum

          6  penalty of $2,500 and a maximum penalty of $10,000.

          7                 In conclusion, the Department

          8  supports the addition of "asphalt millings" to the

          9  list of those materials that are deemed acceptable

         10  as "fill material" in the City of New York.

         11                 We will be happy to answer your

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Orlin.  Deputy Commissioner Cannisi?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Good

         16  morning.  As I said earlier, I am Joseph Cannisi,

         17  Deputy Commissioner of Roadway Repair for the

         18  Department of Transportation.  Thank you for

         19  providing me with this opportunity to testify in

         20  support of Int. No. 393.

         21                 We support this bill because it will

         22  provide the City with another viable alternative for

         23  the disposal of surplus asphalt millings produced

         24  for the City's road projects.  Each year the

         25  Department of Transportation generates approximately
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          2  270,000 tons of milled asphalt pavement through our

          3  in- house resurfacing program.  We recycle

          4  approximately 123,000 tons annually by incorporating

          5  these millings into new asphalt at our plant located

          6  on Hamilton Avenue in Brooklyn.  Another 15,000 tons

          7  are recycled into new asphalt by the vendors

          8  providing asphalt to DOT. Additionally,

          9  approximately 92,000 tons are provided to City and

         10  private entities for use as grading material on

         11  small basis.

         12                 This still leaves DOT with

         13  approximately 40,000 tons of milling to dispose of

         14  each year.  The majority of these millings end up in

         15  landfills.  By passage of this bill, new outlets for

         16  this material will be developed, thereby improving

         17  the City's recycling efforts.  We thank you for your

         18  support and we're available for any questions you

         19  might have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you.

         21  It's my understanding that everyone else at the

         22  table is here just to answer questions and that's

         23  the extent of the prepared testimony.  Is that

         24  correct?

         25                 Could you, maybe if you could tell
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          2  me, Deputy Commissioner Orlin or maybe Mr. Bimonte

          3  could tell me.  When we talk about fill material,

          4  what are all the ranges or applications for that?

          5                 MR. BIMONTE:  Well for the permits

          6  that Sanitation uses, we issue fill material

          7  operation permits where there will be no structure

          8  placed on the site.  So, for instance, it can be

          9  used to grade or level a new park.  We've had fill

         10  operation permits to grade and level cemeteries, to

         11  fill in holes where petroleum tanks were, to grade

         12  parking lots where there is not going to be a

         13  structure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  And what about

         15  the Freshkills Landfill.  Would this be used there

         16  as well?

         17                 MR. BIMONTE:  Well fill material is

         18  used -- when Freshkills was accepting waste, fill

         19  material was placed over the landfill as daily cover

         20  and it can be used for permanent cover, although

         21  there are special materials also required for

         22  permanent cover.  Asphalt millings are used for

         23  roadways there as well.  To create roadways for the

         24  vehicles going over the landfill.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  I know one of
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          2  the budget issues that we face is the payment for

          3  the material that's used to cover at the landfill.

          4  Would this be acceptable for cover at the landfill?

          5                 MR. BIMONTE:  Yes, some of it can be

          6  used at the landfill as cover, but for final cover,

          7  there are very specific requirements that go beyond,

          8  certainly clean fill, but it can be used as daily

          9  cover and part of the final cover.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So would that,

         11  in effect, save the City money because DOT would be

         12  giving you free cover so to speak?

         13                 MR. BIMONTE:  It would help save a

         14  little bit of money, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, and then

         16  the other applications, that's from Sanitation from

         17  the Buildings Department are there other

         18  applications for fill material?  In other words, I

         19  know that we're using a definition or we're defining

         20  what fill material is, but I just want to make sure

         21  I understand all the possible uses for fill

         22  material.

         23                 MR. LIVIAN:  Yes, the Department of

         24  Buildings receives application for fill material and

         25  in fact, if the fill material is over 300 cubic
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          2  yards, we have a system that we will notify the

          3  Department of Sanitation.

          4                 The Building Code Section talks about

          5  construction and building structures on fill

          6  material and there are different qualities of fill

          7  material.  One is called controlled fill, which is a

          8  satisfactory type of fill.  Another one is

          9  uncontrolled fill, which will, in this case, contain

         10  asphalt milling and other sand and gravel.  You can

         11  still construct buildings on top of it, but it

         12  requires more testing, more pouring and testing of

         13  the soil to assure that the foundation is resting on

         14  solid fill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  That's an

         16  obvious question.  So in other words, there is a

         17  hole in the ground and somebody wants to build

         18  there, before they can build they have to bring the

         19  property to level grade, so they fill the hole.  Is

         20  that basically it?

         21                 MR. LIVIAN:  That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  And then

         23  depending on the amount of the size of the hole that

         24  they have to fill, may possibly trigger an

         25  application to DOS.
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          2                 MR. LIVIAN:  If it's large enough, it

          3  will require an application to DOS.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  And then DOS

          5  looks at the material based on the laws that now

          6  exist and says that's acceptable fill and that's not

          7  acceptable fill, and what we're doing is asking the

          8  question of whether or not asphalt millings could

          9  add to that mix if you will, right?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NATOLI:  Yes.

         11  DOS determines if the fill is good fill, clean fill,

         12  based on the current Law.  If we were to introduce

         13  the millings as part of clean fill, then Buildings

         14  or the area or the site to be built on would then

         15  fall under Department of Buildings to say yes you

         16  can take it in the millings are fine, we've done the

         17  testing and there's no problems.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  For those

         19  permits that Sanitation issues, asphalt millings

         20  would be perfectly acceptable. I mean it's not

         21  hazardous.  To the extent that a project is on a

         22  waterway, we would require that the applicant speak

         23  to DEC and State DEC to make sure that any potential

         24  water impact is covered.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  But as I
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          2  understood your testimony, right now DEC does allow

          3  asphalt millings as clean fill.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  They do.

          5  The only issue would be whether runoff into the

          6  water should be covered.  I mean if it's not near a

          7  waterway, DEC doesn't regulate it in any way.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  What does DEC

          9  say now about -- I mean do they regulate all fill

         10  near a waterway?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  Well we

         12  would just ask that the applicant speak to DEC to

         13  determine whether there is any environmental impact

         14  from runoff to a waterway.  I mean, sometimes DEC

         15  may require a permit, sometimes they may not.

         16  That's DEC's jurisdiction.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay.  You

         18  indicated that roughly DOT has about 40,000 tons of

         19  excess asphalt millings a year alone. What do you do

         20  with that now?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  It ends

         22  up in landfills.  We actually take it to landfill

         23  and dump it, so it's going to waste.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So we pay

         25  whatever the price is to landfill the 40,000 tons.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  And the

          3  hauling costs as well.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So a savings

          5  could be realized if we --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  That is

          7  correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Could you

          9  provide with us with the numbers on that?  Could you

         10  ask the budget people at DOT to tell us what the

         11  numbers would be if you have that available?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Yeah,

         13  well will try to work something up for you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  I think that

         15  would be helpful. As we weigh issues like this, if

         16  we know what the savings will be, certainly it would

         17  make it a wiser bill to pass.  And then, I guess my

         18  only other question is environmentally, are you

         19  aware of any concerns by using asphalt millings in

         20  terms of runoff or any implication that that could

         21  have for the environment?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  If I

         23  could speak a little bit.  Asphalt millings are made

         24  of the same material that the roadway is made of.

         25  So whatever runoff conditions we have from existing
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          2  asphalt roads, it's the same exact material once

          3  it's ground.  So as Deputy Commissioner Orlin said,

          4  it's 95% stone and sand and gravel.   The other 5%

          5  is the asphalt cement.  It's the exact same mixture

          6  that you have in the roadway right now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  What is asphalt

          8  cement?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  It's

         10  essentially I guess, a petroleum based binder to

         11  hold the stone mixture together and give it a

         12  strength.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  When the

         14  roadway is in existence, it's sort of bound if you

         15  will and it's very firm, compacted.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:

         17  Compacted, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  When we have

         19  millings, now it's finer particles, do we run the

         20  risk of releasing those particles into the

         21  environment?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  I mean,

         23  there is a possibility that asphalt milling dust

         24  could be released; however, I think we would

         25  probably require that some clean soil be placed on
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          2  top of the asphalt millings so the asphalt millings

          3  would only be used as a base layer, not the top

          4  layer and therefore, you eliminate any issues of

          5  dust.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Or it

          7  could be combined as well.  You could actually mix

          8  it in with the sand and gravel so that it's not one

          9  product in and of itself.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  We have been

         11  joined by my colleague from Staten Island, a member

         12  of this Committee, Andrew Lanza.

         13                 Okay just to sort of summarize.

         14  Clearly, the City and I'm sure other areas around

         15  municipalities have more of this stuff than they

         16  know what to do with.  There is a good practical

         17  application to use it as fill material and landfill

         18  cover, which of course, is an issue near and dear to

         19  me.  The question is whether or not that has any

         20  type of negative environmental impact.  Would all

         21  agree that I kind of got the gist of the issue here

         22  and are any of you aware of any studies or any

         23  information or anyone who makes the case that there

         24  is a harmful effect to the environment that I should

         25  be aware of or I have to make the Council aware of?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  We've

          3  read some articles and no article has determined

          4  that this is a potential environmental health

          5  impact.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  As I think I

          7  also understood, or it's my briefing paper, that

          8  Connecticut allows its use as to the way we're

          9  proposing it now and New Jersey seems to have a more

         10  regulatory approach.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  I think

         12  New Jersey allows it, but they check on runoff.

         13  State DEC allows it.  I mean, they don't even

         14  regulate it, so it's totally allowed under the

         15  State's environmental regulations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay.  Mr.

         17  Cannisi, I understood that we have 270,000 tons

         18  roughly that we generate and 120,000 are used --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  In our

         20  asphalt plant in Hamilton to make new asphalt.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  That's good

         22  recycling.  Very good work.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Yes,

         24  approximately 38% of the mixture is recycled

         25  material.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, but then

          3  15,000 tons are recycled into new asphalt.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Right,

          5  we have vendors.  We require the vendors to take a

          6  certain amount from us to use in the asphalt they

          7  produce for us.  So they recycle as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay.  The

          9  question I was about to -- 92,000 tons.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  There

         11  are certain City -- as Deputy Commissioner Orlin had

         12  mentioned, when they build roads into the landfill,

         13  they use asphalt millings to do that sort of thing.

         14  It's used in that fashion as well right now, where

         15  you want to build a temporary road you put it in and

         16  then later on you may have to remove that and dump

         17  it at some point in the future too.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  But is it put

         19  on the ground just laid out uncovered so to speak?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Yes,

         21  exactly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  So that's

         23  sitting out there exposed to the elements now in any

         24  event.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  Yes,
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          2  that's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Does anyone

          4  monitor that for runoff?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  As far

          6  as I know, no and we haven't had any issues other

          7  than those where it was placed too close to a tidal

          8  waterway and then obviously you have to touch base

          9  with DEC.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  At the

         11  landfill, I think we are in a tidal waterway out

         12  there, so is that being monitored, do you know?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  Well our

         14  operations are monitored by the State Department of

         15  Environmental Conservation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Again, I think

         17  that it sounds in the broader perspective, like this

         18  is a good recycling effort.  Do you all agree with

         19  that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ORLIN:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  The only issue

         22  that I want to make sure of is whether or not there

         23  is any environmental impact. Thank you all very much

         24  and thanks for coming down this morning, we

         25  appreciate it.   Nice to see you again Mike.
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          2                 Okay our next witness is a former

          3  Council Member, Mr. Ed Wallace from Greenberg

          4  Traurig (phonetic).

          5                 Good morning Mr. Wallace.

          6                 MR. WALLACE:  Thank you very much for

          7  permitting us to testify.  I have next to me, Pierre

          8  Gagne, who is a principal in Ferry Point Partners,

          9  which is developing a golf course on public land in

         10  the Bronx next to the Whitestone Bridge and Steve

         11  Grogg, an engineer who is familiar with the project,

         12  has worked on the project and understands who

         13  millings might be useful in the development of the

         14  golf course.

         15                 As you know it's a special honor for

         16  me to be able to testify here, having once been a

         17  member of this body, and I don't want to waste any

         18  of your time since I know how valuable it is.  So I

         19  think we will limit our comment to saying that we

         20  are supportive of the proposed amendment that you

         21  have introduced.  We would only emphasize, in light

         22  of the questions you asked, that this is merely a

         23  first step.  This is a change in Law that will then

         24  permit the relevant agencies to still regulate very

         25  carefully, the use of asphalt millings, depending on
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          2  the sites, depending on the nature of the proposed

          3  project.  You would have various agencies involved

          4  with the City to examine that and then of course,

          5  you might have State DEC. So, I think when it comes

          6  to the environment, there remain in effect ample

          7  checks to be sure that if there could be any

          8  environmental question, it will be examined and

          9  resolved well before any millings are used in any

         10  specific project.             With respect to the

         11  project we're working on that is an old landfill of

         12  the City, not quite like you have in your Borough,

         13  but it's a landfill that was closed fifty years ago.

         14    In order to be sure not to go down into the waste,

         15  there is construction material and debris, landfill

         16  type material, clean, going on the site and what the

         17  millings could do if they are authorized, not just

         18  by this legislation, but then by the agencies that

         19  would oversee it, is help fill in that clean fill,

         20  reduce cost and therefore, frankly reduce greens

         21  fees maybe.   But all in a very environmentally safe

         22  and sound way.  So it has all of these multiple

         23  benefits.  It helps recycle something we now have on

         24  our hands and can't use.  There are checks and

         25  balances to make sure it's clean fill and clean in
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          2  every sense of the word in terms of environmental

          3  use, and where it presents any question at all, it

          4  won't be used.  So I think this is just a very

          5  useful first step and we're glad to answer any

          6  questions.  But otherwise, just state that we're in

          7  support of the legislation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you Mr.

          9  Wallace.  Are you aware of any studies or any

         10  information that would help the Committee in terms

         11  of analyzing the environmental impact or lack of

         12  impact in using asphalt millings for fill material.

         13                 MR. WALLACE:  We've done a very

         14  thorough search of all the material and literature

         15  and there is nothing that we've come across that

         16  would indicate that properly regulated, there is any

         17  question whatsoever, but that it is safe.

         18  Obviously, as was stated in the earlier testimony,

         19  there may be times when you don't want it as the

         20  cover layer of a landfill and there may be times

         21  when you don't want near or in the water, but

         22  properly used, as is true of any construction

         23  material frankly, it presents no hazard and we've

         24  not found anything.  In fact if it's useful, I'll

         25  just quickly tell you that there are a variety of
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          2  states, not just those mentioned.  Massachusetts

          3  used it as mulch under its guardrails, in Buffalo,

          4  New York, it's a sub- base under new lots on

          5  University of Buffalo land, in California, it's

          6  actually used as a liner to a preliminary reservoir,

          7  in Laredo, Texas they use it for fairgrounds to

          8  stabilize the ground there.

          9                 So we really have done a

         10  comprehensive search and are confident that properly

         11  regulated, it's safe and essentially it's no more

         12  dangerous than what you have on the streets today.

         13  So as long as you're not using it in a bad way, it's

         14  completely safe.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  The specific

         16  project that you speak to, the golf course, as I

         17  understand it, that's near the water or is it

         18  actually on the water?

         19                 MR. WALLACE:  Well the portion that

         20  we're discussing is actually upland.  The waterfront

         21  itself is not landfill, it's a grade level, more or

         22  less water level or a little above.  What we're

         23  talking about, the possibility of using, is in the

         24  upland areas, where there was municipal waste.

         25  There is actually fill going on at the site now that
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          2  will raise it up several feet. Because as you know,

          3  a golf course has hills and valleys, well you can't

          4  dig down into the waste without incurring huge cost

          5  to transport it offsite.  So we're filling it up

          6  with C and D material, which is clean big chunks of

          7  fill.  What the millings could provide is a in- fill

          8  if you will, to shape around those things.  Still

          9  well below the surface level that golfers would be

         10  on.  Not near the water and I guess the two other

         11  things to reassure the Committee are by passing this

         12  Amendment, you're merely allowing the relevant City

         13  agencies to examine a proposal from us to use

         14  millings in certain places.  Even if they okay it,

         15  the State DEC has an independent monitor, we're

         16  paying for it, but it's an independent monitor

         17  working for the State, to be sure that nothing has a

         18  content level that would be dangerous or use or

         19  place.  So in our case, there is an extra layer if

         20  you will, of regulation beyond what you're already

         21  enacting.

         22                 The other thing I would say is that

         23  our -- the millings we would use would be mixed in

         24  further, as I think was discussed in the earlier

         25  testimony, to further minimize the inclusion of any
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          2  of those petroleum products that might give people

          3  some perception concern, in practical terms.  They

          4  are not causing anybody any harm.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  I just want to

          6  point out we have been joined by our colleague from

          7  Queens, Finance Committee Chairman, David Weprin.

          8  How much, at your particular project, how much fill

          9  do you need to complete this project?

         10                 MR. WALLACE:  I'm going to let Pierre

         11  Gagne answer that question, who's managing the

         12  project.

         13                 MR. GAGNE:  It's an honor for me to

         14  appear before you, you're Committee, Mr. Chairman

         15  and other members of the Committee, it's my pleasure

         16  to be here.  Thank you so much for giving us this

         17  time today to appear before you in support of

         18  changing this bill to permit what we believe will be

         19  a very good use of a material that is abundant and

         20  perfectly safe as a reuse material.

         21                 The amount of material that we are

         22  bringing into the property is 1.5 million cubic

         23  yards of material in total.  That's divided into two

         24  separate types of material.  One is a shaping layer,

         25  which is the bottom section of the fill material
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          2  just above the landfill that exists currently at the

          3  site.  The second is what we know and call it as a

          4  cover material.  A cover material consists of both

          5  topsoil and a highly degum (phonetic) required non-

          6  contaminant level of material that can be in contact

          7  with human activity, such as golf perhaps, or tot-

          8  lot play areas or other types of picnicking needs,

          9  but full use of park land that one would expect to

         10  have on such a site, such as the one that I am

         11  developing known as Ferry Point Park.

         12                 MR. WALLACE:  If it's reassuring, the

         13  standard the DEC is holding us to is a higher

         14  standard of clean fill at the top layer than Central

         15  Park has today.  Every load that comes on site is

         16  examined and documented.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Also, as you

         18  know, it's an honor for us to have you here Mr.

         19  Gagne.

         20                 MR. GAGNE:  Thank you and I'm sorry I

         21  was not able to bring Jack Nicklaus.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Okay, thank you

         23  very much gentlemen.  Mr. Dave Hamling, was that

         24  Dave who was up here?  No, okay.  Mr. Hamling?

         25                 MR. HAMLING:  Good morning.  Thank
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          2  you for having me.  I'll give you a brief overview.

          3     I believe my testimony may be on point with the

          4  questions that you have been asking today.

          5                 Very briefly, my name is Dave

          6  Hamling.  I am the Managing Director of the New York

          7  Construction Materials Association which is a

          8  statewide trade association representing businesses

          9  involved in the production of hot- mix asphalt,

         10  construction aggregates and ready- mix concrete.

         11  These are actual producing firms.  Our

         12  representation is statewide.  We're based in a

         13  suburb of Albany, New York.  I was educated at the

         14  College of Environmental Science and Forestry in

         15  Syracuse.  Spent 10 years with the New York State

         16  Department of Environmental Conservation and have

         17  since been working in the trade association business

         18  for another 10 years, so I have been around asphalt

         19  millings for some 24 years now.

         20                 I'll briefly talk about asphalt

         21  paving to give you a sense of the millings.  We have

         22  been paving with asphalt for roughly 100 years,

         23  since the invention of the automobile and the

         24  requirements for better roads.  Asphalt cement,

         25  which we have been talking about this morning, is a
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          2  product of the oil refining business.  It's the very

          3  heaviest sections of the oil refining process, which

          4  is a solid at ambient temperatures.  It actually has

          5  to be heated at relatively high temperatures in

          6  order to flow.

          7                 New York produces some 15 million

          8  tons of asphalt per year for use in road and

          9  construction projects.  Of which, as you've heard,

         10  95% of that is aggregate, which is the stone, sand

         11  or gravel involved, which is an inner material and

         12  roughly 5% asphalt cement.  The reason that asphalt

         13  is so important is because it's very easily placed

         14  using mechanized equipment, quickly constructed,

         15  it's available locally in all areas of New York

         16  State, and millability has become one of the key

         17  factors in using asphalt pavement because when you

         18  re- surface a road, if you just keep laying layers

         19  of asphalt on top, then all the engineered parts of

         20  the road, manhole covers, sewer drains and so forth,

         21  the grades all change.  When you are able to mill

         22  off the top layer of the pavement then you could

         23  hold those grades and it makes the engineering and

         24  actual conduct of paving a much easier and more cost

         25  efficient way of doing business.

                                                            32

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 Each year nationally, 100 million

          3  tons of asphalt millings are created.  We call it

          4  RAP, rather than millings, recycled asphalt

          5  pavement.  80% of the 100 million tons is directly

          6  recycled.  Either we incorporate in the hot- mix

          7  asphalt or it's used as a fill or embankment

          8  material, which is the subject of today's

          9  discussions.

         10                 I would like to just on point with

         11  the environmental considerations that you've been

         12  bringing up in your questions and I think they're

         13  very good questions.  So we'll talk a little bit

         14  about asphalt pavements and millings because they

         15  are an inert material.  That's been recognized by

         16  other states and indeed recognized within New York

         17  State, because they a specific exemption from DEC

         18  solid waste rules because of their inert qualities.

         19  The New York City watershed rules allow asphalt

         20  millings, or RAP, as clean fill.  Studies by the

         21  Asphalt Institute, which is a national organization,

         22  suggest that all guidelines are met for

         23  environmental considerations and they have endorsed

         24  the use of millings as clean fill.  Interestingly,

         25  asphalt has become one of the materials of choice

                                                            33

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  for communities that are building new water

          3  reservoirs. They are actually lining the reservoirs

          4  with asphalt, which would suggest that there are

          5  certainly no environmental quality concerns with

          6  respect to drinking water.

          7                 Also, last year, just last year in

          8  2002, the Federal Environmental Protection Agency

          9  delisted asphalt plants from the producers of

         10  hazardous air pollutants or HAP.  This was a major

         11  win for the industry and it was a recognition by the

         12  Federal Government that asphalt paving does not

         13  create hazardous air pollutants in a quantity to be

         14  considered hazardous to anyone.  So that is

         15  important.

         16                 You heard a little bit about the

         17  Buffalo project where they are using recycled

         18  materials to construct student housing out in that

         19  area and asphalt millings have become an integral

         20  part of the filling and base materials for that

         21  project and an excellent reuse of the millings.

         22                 Perhaps the most definitive study on

         23  asphalt millings came out of the University of

         24  Florida in 1998 and I do have a copy of that, but

         25  it's also on the web.  Their purpose was to test the
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          2  leachate for asphalt being used in fill

          3  applications, which is exactly what you are talking

          4  about.  They tested for volatile organic compounds

          5  (VOC) polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAH), which

          6  is, you probably read this in your background

          7  information, that's the key ingredient in the

          8  asphalt cement, and also for heavy metals.  The

          9  interesting part of this study is that not only did

         10  the millings in the leachate study meet all of the

         11  regulations, but indeed they were below the limits

         12  of detection of the equipment.  There is literally

         13  nothing that leached off that was detectable, that

         14  would be considered hazardous.  To me that's a very

         15  definitive statement.  It's essentially an inert

         16  product. Consequently, their conclusions were that

         17  asphalt millings or RAP is appropriately used as a

         18  fill material and does not constitute an

         19  environmental hazard.  That concludes my testimony.

         20  I will be happy to answer any questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  What I'd like

         22  to do is, you said you had a copy of the study, if

         23  you could leave that with us and we will have staff

         24  look at all the other information you provided. Has

         25  there every been any mention of the asphalt millings
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          2  being a fire hazard?

          3                 MR. HAMLING:  Look at how many times

          4  roads burn.  It just takes a tremendous amount of

          5  heat in order to get the asphalt to ignite and

          6  because it's so dense and compact, there is no air

          7  circulation and it really is not a hazard that's

          8  ever been even suggested in the literature.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  I think you've

         10  spoken to us, what is the concern from the point of

         11  view of recycling and using the material and getting

         12  cheap fill, it makes a lot of sense.  We just want

         13  to make sure from the environmental side and we

         14  appreciate you giving us that information and we'll

         15  continue to look at it.  If we have any further

         16  follow up, if it's okay, I'll have staff get in

         17  contact with you.

         18                 MR. HAMLING:  That would be fine.  I

         19  do intend to head north this afternoon after my

         20  testimony, so I'll leave an address that you can

         21  contact me.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you Mr.

         23  Hamling.  Thanks for coming down.  I wondered where

         24  you were.  Timothy Logan from the New York City

         25  Environmental Justice Alliance.
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          2                 MR. LOGAN:  Good morning Mr. Chairman

          3  and Council Members.  I came by really to listen

          4  today and then I was surprised to see some of the

          5  other people testifying and thought I should testify

          6  as well.

          7                 Although we support the use of

          8  asphalt millings in fill material, as long as it's

          9  regulated and so it remains a small percentage of

         10  the entire fill material, we think it's important to

         11  be careful about what uses this is being used for.

         12                 In particular, one of the early

         13  testimonies, I believe by Ferry Point Partners, is

         14  for a facility that has a lot of environmental

         15  problems already.  Their original application to the

         16  State Department of Environmental Conservation asked

         17  for about half of the entire amount of C and D

         18  materials to be put on top of this closed landfill.

         19  As we said prior to the beginning of that

         20  construction, without the cap that they removed of

         21  clay material, there would be a problem and in fact

         22  in would sink and cause methane migration.  So there

         23  remains a problem when people put fill material on

         24  particular landfills in particular, depending upon

         25  what the situation is.  Whether or not it's been
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          2  fully capped prior to the arrangement.  So I just

          3  urge you to passage of this, but to the extent that

          4  there could be any language to particularly watch

          5  any project that's moving forward where they intend

          6  to use the fill material for its environmental

          7  soundness.   Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Thank you, and

          9  as always you speak right to the kernel of the issue

         10  and that's our concern. Staff will continue to look

         11  at this.  I think you'll agree from a recycling

         12  point of view, there is some logic.  If we can

         13  recycle this material great, as long as it's

         14  environmentally sound and it's properly regulated.

         15  We'll work with and check on the DEC rules as well

         16  and see how they are enforced.  Thank you.   We will

         17  not be voting on this matter today, as staff is

         18  directed to continue to look at it; however, we

         19  expect to bring it back at the next or meeting after

         20  that.  So that being all the testimony before the

         21  Committee, I thank my colleagues for their

         22  attendance,  I thank Andrew Sterrer and of course,

         23  Carmen Cognetta, the Counsel to the Committee and we

         24  hereby conclude this meeting of the Committee.

         25                 (Meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m.)
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